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The Castle of Mytilene (modern Mytilini),
encompassing an area of 200,000 m?

(20 hectares), is considered one of the largest
fortresses in the Mediterranean. Excavations
by the Canadian Institute have uncovered

the sanctuary of Demeter, proof that the site
has been inhabited since antiquity. The first
Byzantine phase of the fortress is estimated
to date to the reign of Justinian (6th c. A.D.).

INFORMATION

The present form of the castle is the result

of the building activity of the Gattelusi,

who ruled the island during the Late Byzantine
period (1355-1462), and above all the Ottomans,
who occupied Lesbos from 1462 until 1912.
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It is divided into three parts in accordance

with its overall configuration: the Upper,

Xpnuatoddtnon ékdoaong: OMAI AE.
Middle, and Lower Castle.
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EAAHNIKA

Avw Kdotpo

Armotelei Tov kUplo oxupwpatikd mepiforo. H eicodog
yivetal amé v kevtpikr] SImAr) TUAn otn vétua mAeupd
tou. E&w Bpiokovtal ta onuavtkdtepa SioiknTikd Kai
BpnNOKEUTIKG KTIOPATA TOU KAOTPOU.

O Meydhog MepiBolog. Mpdkertar yia to MAéov oxupd
onueio Tou kdotpou. MNMepihapBdvel mévie mMipyoug mou
opifouv £vav opBoywvio aiBpio x@Wpo. ZTov KEVIPIKG
Sutiké mipyo, yvwotd kal wg «Mupyo tng Bacilicoagy,
UTIAPXEI N APIEPWHATIKY TTAGKA PE TO OIKOONHO TWV
Fatedoulwy, 6mwg emiong o astdg kail ta téooepa B

twv MNahaioAéywv tou Bulavtiou. Anotehovoe thyv
Katolkia nyepévwy.

To KouAé Tqapi, oe epeimdn orjpepa poper, ival éva
amé ta duo tdapid mou unpxav dAAoTE OTo KAGTPO.
>wetal n kKAipaka avédou TPog To UTTEPWO Kal TO PIXPduT,
n 1epr} SnAadn kéyxn. Eivar xtiopévo ndvw oe xpiotiaviké
vad g mep16dou twv Matehouwv Mou Tav aQIEPWHEVOG
otov dyio lwdvvn.

Mecaio Kdaotpo

H gicodog yivetar amé tnv oBwpavikr miAn Optd Karmou.
Bpioketal pmpootd and ) Autikr TUAN twv Fatehoulwy,
n omoia xpovoloyeital oto 1373. Ta pvnpeia tou Meoaiou
Kdotpou mou cwlovral sivar:

H lMuprudarmoBrikn. Mpdkertar yia ktjpio tng obwpavikrig
TEPIGSOU TTOU KATACKEUAOTNKE Yia Tt QUAAgn Twv
nupopaxik@v. MNa Adyoug mpoctaciag tou and nupkayid,
n opo@H ival katackeuacpévn and METPa Kal yia Ty
ac@aleld tou mepifdAletar ané uPnAd toixo.

O Mevépeaég, to OBwpaviké lepodidackaleio. To ktipio
gival 8idpoPo, TeTpdywvng Katoyng mou SiapBpwvetal
YUpw amé €va Kevipikd aibpio. Xtov endvw épogo
urpxav ol aiouceg Sidaockaliag kal mpooeguxiig, kabwg
Kal ta keAid. Xto 10dyelo Bpiokovtav ta payeipsia, n
tpamedapia kar ol amoBrKeg.

O Tekég, To oBwpavikd povaotripl émou Siépevay
Obwpavoi kahdyepol. Eival pikpou pey£oug kai
KaAUTTTETAl PE TPOUAO.

To Xtpatwtiké Nogokopeio - Puraxés. Eivar ktiopa tng
0Bwpavikig mePIGdoU TIOU XPNOIPEVE WG VOOOKONEIO

Yla TIG avAyKeG TOU oTPatou Kal MapdAnAa wG QUAAKEG.
To ktiplio gival povapopo, alkd Siab<tel kal unéyeioug
XWPOUG TTOU XPNCIPOTIOIoUVTIaV w¢ Kpatnthpia.

H Aeapevrj, éva ané ta onpavtikdtepa ktiopata,

pe xwpnukdétnta 400 kuBikwv vepou. Exel kataldBer

™ B€on Snudaciou pwpdikou kTiopatog kai Siakpivovtal
TTOANEG oIKoSOopIKEG pdoelg. H otéyn Tou eival
KATAOKEUAOPEVN PE TPATO WOTE va yivetal duvatr

n ouMoyr| Tou Bpoéxivou vepou.

H kprjvn, ktiopa g oBwpavikrig mepiddou. Xtnv miow
mAgupd TnG undpxel de&apeviy.

Katw Kdotpo

To 1644 o lpmparjy Xav mpoxwpnoe otn dnuioupyia

tou Kdtw Kdotpou yia tnv mpootacia tou Bépeiou Aipéva
Kal ) ouvdeor] tou pe To Meoaio Kdotpo, pe to omoio
emKolvwvouoe Siapéoou tng Pulavtiviig mMuAidag. Xtn Bépeia
mAgupd utrpxe SIMAT oBwpavikr TUAN, n omoia ykpepioTnke
to 1960 yia va kataotei Suvatr n SiéAeuon Twv oxnudtwy.
210 xwpo urrpxav 80 mepimou katoikieg. Zpepa, kT
amé to e&wkkArfiol g Mavayidg FaAovoag, upictavtal

pévo évteka olkieg, To oBwpaviké Aoutpd Kai pia
oBwpavikr kprjvn.

The Upper Castle

The Upper Castle forms the main fortification enclosure.
Access is via the main double gate on its southern side.

The castle’s most important administrative and religious
buildings were located here.

The Large Enclosure. This was the Castle’s most heavily-
fortified point. It included five towers that defined an open
rectangular space. On the central western tower known as
the “Queen’s Tower”, there is a dedicatory plaque with the
Gattelusi coat-of-arms, as well as the eagle and the four Bs of
the Byzantine Palaiologans. This was the rulers’ residence.
The Koulé Mosque, which today lies in ruins, was one of

the two mosques that were once in the castle. It preserves
its ascending staircase leading to the gallery and its mihrab
(prayer niche). It was built atop a Christian church dating

to the period of the Gattelusi that was dedicated to Agios
loannis (Saint John).

The Middle Castle

The Ottoman gate, Orta Kapu (= the Middle Gate), dating to
1373, leads to the Middle Castle. The following monuments
are preserved from the Middle Castle:

The Powder Magazine. This was an Ottoman building
constructed for ammunition storage. To protect the building
from fire, the upper floor was of stone, and for security
reasons it was surrounded by a high wall.

The Madrassa, the Ottoman theological school. This two-
story building, which was square in plan, was organized

. Meoaia moAn Middle gate

. Tevouduikn mUAn Genovese gate

. BuCavuvi mOAn Byzantine gate

. As&apevn Cistern

. OBwpavikr kprivn Ottoman fountain
. OBwpavikr oikia Ottoman house
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. MevSpeoig (OBwpaviké lepodidackaleio)
Madrassa (Ottoman theological school)

8. Xapdp Hamam

9. Tekég (aoknuipio) Tekke (Ottoman monastery)

10. ®ulakég Prison

Il. Muprudamolrikn Powder magazine

12. Zuykpdtnua oy Complex of houses

13. lep6 Arjuntpag kai Képng Sanctuary of Demeter and Kore
14. Ay. lwavvng - Kouh€ TZapi Agios loannis — Koule mosque
15. Zapkogdyog Sarcophagus

16. Kpumrteg Crypts

17. Axpdmupyog Keep

18. Muprudamobrikn Powder magazine

19. Xapdp Hamam
20. Kprjvn Fountain

2l. Oikieg Houses
22. MoAn Gate

23. Bépeia moAn Northern gate
24. BuZavuvij mukida Byzantine postern gate
25. Néua nmoAn Southern gate

around a central atrium. On the upper floor there were
classrooms and rooms for prayer, as well as cells. The
kitchen, dining-area and storerooms were on the ground
floor.

The Tekke, the Ottoman monastery where Ottoman monks
resided. It was a small, domed building.

The Military Hospital - Prison. This was an Ottoman building
used as an army hospital and prison. It was a one-story
building, but also had basement spaces that were used as
holding cells.

The Cistern, one of the fortress’s most important buildings,
with a capacity of 400 m® (=14,126 cubic feet) of water. It
occupied the site of a Roman public building and multiple
building phases may be discerned. Its roof was constructed
in such a way as to collect rain water.

The Fountain, another Ottoman building. There was a
cistern at its rear.

The Lower Castle

In 1644, Ibrahim Han proceeded to create the Lower
Castle to protect the north harbor and its connection with
the Middle Castle, with which it communicated via the
Byzantine postern gate. On its northern side there was an
Ottoman gate that was demolished in 1960 to allow for
vehicular traffic. There were around 80 houses in this area.
Today, the Ottoman bath-hamam, eleven houses, and the
Panagia Galousa cave remain.
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